0001

01 BEFORE THE CALI FORNI A HORSE RACI NG BOARD
01

02 FOR THE STATE OF CALI FORNI A

02

03 ROBERT H. TOURTELOT, COWM TTEE CHAI RVAN
03

04

04

05

05

06

06

07 In the Matter of:

07

08 The Regul ar Meeting of the
08 California Horse Racing Board
09

09

10

10

11

11

12

12

13

13

14

14

15

15

16

16

17 TRANSCRI PT OF PROCEEDI NGS
17

18 Ponpna, California
18

19 Fri day, Septenber 21, 2001
19

20

20

21

21

22

22

23

23

24

24

25 Reported by:

25

26 JANE E. BRUGCER,

26 CSR No. 11107

27

27 Job No.:

28 CHBH873

28

— N N N




0002

01 BEFORE THE CALI FORNI A HORSE RACI NG BOARD
01

02 FOR THE STATE OF CALI FORNI A

02

03 ROBERT H. TOURTELOT, COWM TTEE CHAI RVAN
03

04

04

05

05

06

06

07 In the Matter of:

07

08 The Regul ar Meeting of the
08 California Horse Racing Board
09

09

10

10

11

11

12

12

13

13

14

14

15

15

16

16

17 TRANSCRI PT OF PROCEEDI NGS, taken
17

18 at 601 West MKinley Avenue, Ponpna,

18

19 California, comencing at 10:13 a.m, on
19

20 Fri day, Septenber 21, 2001, heard before
20

21 ROBERT H. TOURTELOT, Committee Chairnan,
21

22 reported by JANE E. BRUGGER, CSR No. 11107,
22

23 a Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for
23

24 the State of California.

24

25

25

26

26

27

27

28

28

— N N N




0003

01 APPEARANCES:

01
02
02
03
03
04
04
05
05
06
06
07
07
08
08
09
09
10
10
11
11
12
12
13
13
14
14
15
15
16
16
17
17
18
18
19
19
20
20
21
21
22
22
23
23
24
24
25
25
26
26
27
27
28
28

Chai r man:

Executive Director:

Menmber :

Member :

Member :

Menber :

Menmber :

Member :

Robert H. Tourtel ot
Roy C. Wbod

Wl liam A Bianco
Sheryl L. Granzella
John C. Harris

Al an W Landsburg
Roger H. Licht

Marie G Nbretti



0004

01 I NDE X

01

02 AGENDA | TEM PAGE
02

03 1 - Approval of the mnutes of the 6
03 regul ar nmeeting of August 24th, 2001

04

04 2 - Discussion and action by the Board on the 7
05 Application for License to Conduct a Horse

05 Raci ng Meeting of the Churchill Downs

06 California Fall Operating Conpany at

06 Hol | ywood Park, conmenci ng Novenber 7th

07 t hrough Decenmber 17th, 2001, inclusive

07

08 3 - Discussion and action by the Board on the 13
08 Application for License to Conduct a Horse

09 Race Meeting of the Pacific Racing

09 Associ ation (T) At Colden Gate Fields,

10 comenci ng Novenber 7th, 2001 through

10 March 31, 2002, inclusive

11

11 4 - Discussion and action on the allocation of 22
12 the Northern Fair and thoroughbred race

12 dates for 2002

13

13 5 - Discussion and action by the Board on the 49
14 Approval of the annual distribution of a

14 Portion of the unclained refund nonies,

15 Adjusted for inflation, to the Jockeys

15 Quild Health and Wel fare Trust, pursuant To

16 Busi ness and Professions Code Section 19612.9

16

17 6 - Public hearing on the adoption of the 60
17 Regul at ory amendnment to C.H R B. Rule 1969 -

18 Wagering prohibited, to add totalizator

18 Enpl oyees to classes of |icensees who are

19 Prohi bited from pl aci ng wagers while on duty

19

20 7 - Public hearing on the adoption of the 63
20 regul atory andendnment to C.H R B. Rule 1979 -

21 Trifecta, to elimnate the provision that

21 Requi res the cancell ation and refund of the

22 Trifecta pool if less than five wagering

22 Interests finish the race

23

23 8 - Staff Reports 65
24

24 9 - Election of chairman and the vice chairman 66
25

25 10 - Report fromthe Race Dates Conmittee 68
26

26 11 - Report fromthe Pari-Mituel Operations 68
27 Conmittee

27

28

28



0005
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

0006
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

Ponona, California, Friday, Septenber 21, 2001
10:13 a. m

MR. WOOD: Good norning everybody and wel conme to
the regularly schedul ed neeting of the California Horse
Raci ng Board bei ng conducted on Friday, Septenber 21st,
2001. And we're at the Sheraton Fairplex Suites in
Ponmpna, California

Present at today's neeting are
Chai rman Robert Tourtel ot, Conmi ssioner WIIliam Bi anco
Conmmi ssi oner Sheryl Granzella, Commissioner John Harris,
Conmi ssi oner Al an Landsburg, Conmi ssioner Roger Licht and
Conmi ssioner Marie Moretti.

Before we go forward with this norning' s
meeting | would respectfully request that if you have
testinony to give to the Board that you pl ease provide our
court reporter with a business card. |If you can't do
that, you need to be sure you state your name and your
organi zation clearly before you begin the testinony.

Wth that, | would like to turn the neeting
over to our Chairman, M. Bob Tourtel ot.

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you, Roy. And thank you for
comi ng.

Bef ore we commence our business | would Iike
to have a nonent of silence for all of those who were
taken fromus in the tragic events of Septenber 11th.
Thank you.

The first itemon the agenda today is the
approval of the mnutes of the regular neeting of
August 24t h, 2001.

MR. HARRIS: | have a couple of suggestions, or
changes.

On page 4 there is a statenent fromme that |
think was taken incorrectly. If | recall | didn't say --
on line 3 it says, "He stated the fairs historically had
the dates, but in the 1980s at sone point, there were not
enough horses to run the days." | think what | said was,
"There were enough horses to run the days with overlap."
So if we take out "not" and add "run the days with
overlap."

And then also on line 5 and it was al so
i mportant to conmunity racing. | don't recall saying
"community racing.” | think what | intended to say was,
"Provide racing to areas of California away from ngj or
track areas."

And also on the last page it shows the death

of -- it's incorrect. It says "Bart Halliburton." It's
Bart Hel en (phonetic). So insert "Helen" for
"Hal li burton" on line 3 and line 7, | guess.

And also on the next to the last line it was
not the "Living G een Stakes," it was the "Living Dream
St akes. "

MR, TOURTELOT: All right. Then the notion would
i ncl ude those changes, Conm ssioner Harris.
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Does anyone --

LANDSBURG | so nove.
TOURTELOT:  Second?
MORETTI :  Second.
TOURTELOT: All in favor?
Bl ANCO:  Aye.
GRANZELLA: Aye.
HARRI S:  Aye.
LANDSBURG: Aye.

LI CHT: Aye.

MORETTI :  Aye.
TOURTELOT:  Aye.

Motion is approved.

The next itemon the agenda is the di scussion
and action by the Board on the Application for License to
Conduct a Horse Racing Meeting of the Churchill Downs
California Fall Operating Conpany at Hol | ywood Park,
commenci ng Novenber 7th through Decenber 17th, 2001.

25335533553

Jacki e?
MS. WAGNER: Jacki e Wagner, C.H R B. staff.
Churchill Downs has filed its application for
a license to conduct this neeting. Its post dates are

from Novenber the 7th through Decenber 17th, which is
31 days. And that's four days less than they ran in the
year 2000.
They're proposing to run a total of
267 races, or 8.6 races per day.
They nmeet the 10 percent requirenent of
st akes purses paid for Cal-bred stakes races.

They will be racing five days per week,
Wednesday t hrough Sunday, with eight races per day on
Wednesday, Thursday, Friday and Monday, Decenber 17th.
They're proposing to race nine races on Saturdays and ten
on sel ective Sundays, Friday, November 23rd and Saturday,
Novenber 24th.

The first post tinme daily will be 12:30.

The wagering programwill utilize C. H R B.
rul es.

We have received the horsenmen's agreement.
So the only outstanding itemthat we have on this
application is the fire clearance.

And the staff would reconmend that the Board
approve the application contingent upon us receiving that.

MR, TOURTELOT: Am | correct that this application

now i ncl udes the representation with respect to the back
si de?

M5. WAGNER: That has not -- is not included on
this application. But the back side has been inspected.
That will be -- | think that application is up for
adoption at the Board's next meeting.

So that includes -- that whole statement will

be on the next application that's cone before the Board.
MR. HARRIS: Can | ask a question?
On the application there is a |ist of various
pl aces that they would sinmulcast to. |I'mnot clear if the
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horsenen's organi zati on has approved these on -- for these
speci fic beats.

MS. WAGNER: | believe they have. There may be
sonmeone here from Hol |l ywood Park that would be able to
clarify that.

MR, JOHNSON: Don Johnson.

I'"m not sure we received the application.
There is a list of those. W wll review them and approve
t hem or suggest changes.

MR. BAEDEKER: Ri ck Baedeker, Hol | ywood Park.

There is nothing new and different in the |ist
of receiving locations. |It's just a question of
getting all the contracts back, and so forth. But | don't
antici pate any probl ens.

MR. HARRIS: | amnot too worried about it in this
meeting. But as we go forward it's going to be nore
i mportant with account wagering that there is going to be
a lot of different plusses and m nuses of sinulcasting in
di fferent places.

MR, VAN DE KAMP: M. Chairman -- John Van De Kanp,
T.0C

What usual ly happens in these situations is
the track, | think, lists the outside organizations with
whomit intends to deal with, and it is subsequent to the
approval that they usually provide us the list which we
then review and approve or disapprove. And then we work
it out.

I would suggest that we fornalize that
process a bit further so that the Board gets a conplete
list of the approved lists of all the sinulcast facilities

that the two of us, the tracks and the horsenen, agree to,
and the rates. And then, basically, the files are kept
and sonme review nmade by the Horse Racing Board. So their
approvals, at |least, are nore than just facial. Because
think in the past there has been very little attention
given to that fromthe Board's standpoint.

And | realize it's an additional burden. But
that is what has happened before, and that is why | wll

not -- and plus a second ago when you asked the
guestion --

MR. HARRIS: Well, my concern is that sone, if not
all, the applications have recently included, say --

Bi rm ngham as | understand, is noted for giving rebates
and sending their signal to offshore places to get
rebates. And | think, philosophically, racing needs to,
you know, the horsenmen and the tracks have to | ook at that
i ssue and see if that's sonmething that is true to --
MR. BAEDEKER: And we have in the past.

As a matter of fact, a year ago we withheld a
signal fromour receiving site because we did have
evi dence, as a matter of fact, not that they were
subdi sseminating it but, as a matter of fact, that they
were giving rebates. And so we do monitor it. | wll
agree with you. We have to do a better job with that
goi ng forward.
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The only comment | would |ike to nake about
John's remarks is at this point, nore than a nonth before
the season, nmany of these agreenents are still pending.

So we can subnmit a list of finalized agreements along with
the list of those that are likely to be included before
the start of the neeting.

There is not much change here. Basically al
of us go just about every place we can. And the list is
not changi ng nuch now as opposed to a few years ago when
it was growi ng significantly each year

MR HARRIS: | think going forward, maybe we need
to look at the application to really segregate the sites
that are strictly a traditional off-site, off-track
wagering site -- that's just all they do is people conme in
and bet -- and the ones that are actually cobetting sites
or cal -wagering sites. Because if those people can
conpete in California with whatever types are in
California, then there is a whole different situation that
goes forward than has been.

MR. VAN DE KAMP: | think that's appropriate.

You have to know that as we review these
tracks, you know, send these proposed rates, we | ook to,
in establishing the rates with the tracks -- and | think
we're pretty much on all fours on this. But if we have a
state -- we're sending to a greyhound track, for exanple,
there's no support in horse racing, we usually charge
a lot more. Birmngham we charged a lot nore. 1In fact,
there was sone betting that was gravitating from Las Vegas
to Birm ngham We get nmore out of Birm nghamthan we
certainly do get out of Las Vegas. We're very cognizant
of that. And sonetines we pick it up after the fact.

But every sinmulcast director, you know, works
wWith us on this because it's in the track's interest as
wel | as ours to make sure we get as nuch as we possibly
can.

MR HARRIS: Well, ny concern was, | don't know if
the Board involved should all agree and say, well, you
shoul d get X versus Y from Birm ngham But | think the
Board involved is assured that the tracks and the
hor senmen, you know, have thoroughly | ooked at the
arrangenents and feel that there is a need to do whatever
you' re doi ng.

MR. LANDSBURG We still believe, though, that we
need the overside of the paperwork that was suggested
which is sinmply what the percentage is conming to
California.

MR. TOURTELOT: Any other coments or questions?

The Chair would entertain a notion to approve
that application.

MORETTI: So noved.
TOURTELOT: Second?

Bl ANCO.  Second.
TOURTELOT: All in favor?
Bl ANCO.  Aye.

GRANZELLA: Aye.

PIDDDD
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HARRI S:  Aye.
LANDSBURG: Aye.
LI CHT: Aye.
MORETTI :  Avye.

2 5333

TOURTELOT:  Aye.
The Application for Churchill Downs is
approved.

Item Nunber 3, discussion and action by the
Board on the Application for License to Conduct a Horse
Race Meeting of the Pacific Racing Association at Gol den
Gate Fields, comenci ng Novenber 7th, 2001 through
March 31, 2002.

M5. WAGNER: Jacki e Wagner, C.H R B. staff.

The application before you for Pacific Racing
Association is for Novenber the 7th through March 31st,
2001, which is 101 days. The Association is proposing to
race a total of 858 races for 8.5 races per Day.

They meet the 10 percent requirenent of the
st akes purses paid for Cal -bred stakes races.

They' re proposing to race five days per week,
Wednesday t hrough Sunday, with eight races per day
weekdays, and nine races on Saturdays, Sundays and
hol i days. They will have a first-tine post of 12:45 p.m
dai ly.

We have received a horsenen's agreenent this
nmorning. It's ny understanding that there is a tentative
st akes schedul ed that is being negotiated and | think
needs to be finalized and then signed.

And we are still looking for the fire plans
from Ber kel ey and Al bany.

And the staff would reconmend to the Board to
approve the Application contingent upon us receiving the

addi ti onal information.
MR, TOURTELOT: What is the status of the hospital ?
MR, TUNNEY: |'m Peter Tunney representing

Gol den Gate Field.

The equi ne hospital, the site has been
cleared. The veterinarians have a two-nonth period to
review the plans, the proposed plan draw ngs. They have
approved those. W' ve subnitted those back for
finalization, a 30-day period. They've come back to us
now, as recently as just |ast week. And we've subnmitted
those to Magna, their planning departnment and
Tom Austin who was involved with the original barn area
i mprovenents. And we're putting it out to themas we're
putting it out to you.

MR, TOURTELOT: Have the permts been secured?
MR. TUNNEY: No. They're just now in the bidding
process.

We' ve gone up to the city of Al bany and asked
them We've alerted the City of Al bany. W' ve noved it
fromthe city of Berkeley to the city of Al bany in order
to facilitate this better. W' ve notified the City of
Al bany and the City of Berkeley the past history of this,
and we've alerted the City of Albany that that's our
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intention was to build at that site. W don't anticipate
any problenms, and we're noving forward.

MR, TOURTELOT: So as soon as you select a bid then
you'l'l put it out; you'll subnmit the application, the
permt, to the City of Al bany?

MR. TUNNEY: Correct. And we've already asked for
the paperwork fromthe City of Al bany.

MR, TOURTELOT: Have they given you any prelimnary
i ndi cati on of how they view the project?

MR, TUNNEY: No. | just -- M. Chairman, | net
with the City manager sonme two nonths ago and gave her a
heads-up that that's what our intention is. [It's in an
area that does not obstruct any views of the day and al
the things that would go -- and it's not an
environnental | y-sensitive area.

MR, TOURTELOT: Is the T.0O C. satisfied that
Gol den Gate and Magna is nmoving forward expeditiously with
respect to the hospital?

MR. CGHI DELLA: JimGhidella, T.0 C

Yes, we are. It's --
MR. TOURTELOT: Good.
MR, GHIDELLA: -- it's frustrating, you know, these
processes, but it's certainly -- Magna is pushing al ong,

as far as | know

MR, TOURTELOT: Well, we all recognize it wasn't
Magna's fault that the City of Berkeley was, for whatever
reason, not cooperative. That delayed project is
substantial; is that correct? Your inability -- not your
inability, but the City of Berkeley's refusal to deal with
this --

MR, GHI DELLA: That's right.

MR, TOURTELOT: -- permt application is what has
del ayed this project?

MR. TUNNEY: And the sinple answer to that is -- it
was our inability to do it. But the sinple answer is the
fact that the Berkeley area is so -- the equine hospita

being put in the Berkeley area within the state, where
it's adjacent to it, is a nonconform ng use to the current
zone.
MR. TOURTELOT: All right. Thank you.
Any questions from any of the conm ssioners?
MR, HARRIS: |'ve got a quick question

This also ties into sone of the account
wagering i ssues we tal ked about with Holl ywod Park that's
probably nore pertinent with your neetings that will be
continuing to the year 2002 in the event the rules will be
in place in the year 2002.

I noticed on your application you list T.V.G
as a person you sell to. And | wasn't clear if you, in
fact, are a T.V.G track or you sell to them or what?

MR. TUNNEY: |It's an option to go forward.
MR HARRIS: | can't --
MR. TUNNEY: [|I'msorry, M. Harris.

It's an option to go forward, and that's why

we put it in there. W do not have an agreenent with the
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T.V.G

MR. HARRI' S: How about when you bet?

MR. TUNNEY: Sane thing.

MR. HARRI'S: So ny experience is that any of these
same issues with, as far as horsenen approved these -- |
guess you don't have a relationship approved. But it is a

little bit confusing on these applications when -- you put
just everybody that conceivably you would sell to? O |
t hought --

MR. TUNNEY: That's correct.

MR. HARRIS: There's no -- so some of these on here
are ones that maybe you don't have an agreenent with, but
there potentially nmight be an agreenent?

MR. TUNNEY: They're potential future relationships
for the advance public wagering.

MR. HARRIS: Let's say if you have an agreenent --
wel |, one case in point would be National Philadel phia
Park. \Wich -- Magna owns --

MR. TUNNEY: Bradford, Pennsylvania, which is a
Pittsburgh site.

MR. HARRI S: And who do they use for a hub?

MR. TUNNEY: They are the hub

MR. HARRI'S: So going forward, is there -- if
account wagering that you're going to discuss |later,
guess, cones into California, | would guess that whatever
arrangenent that is would be reviewed. | mean, right now
it is adifferent situation that's going to be after the
first of the year. So how -- are you going to definitely
go forward?

MR. LI EBAU:. Jack Liebau with Magna.

At this point in tinme Magna has no definitive
pl ans, but we certainly expect and will see to it that al
proper authorizations are received fromthe horsenen.
There's just no question about that. W won't be

exploiting our signal in violation of the Federal Horse
Racing Act which requires the exploitation of the signa
to be approved by the horsenen.

And al so any account wagering that Magna
conducts in California will have to be approved by the
Hor se Raci ng Board.

MR. TUNNEY: So in certainty, M. Harris, in
anticipation that the commttee, whom | congratul ate from
yeterday's activities, will go forward quite a bit.
Initially, I thought we'd be in the mddle of the spring
before we got this going, but right now we just put these
down as potential suiters.

MR, TOURTELOT: Yeah. | think we're putting the
cart before the horse to go in to too nuch discussion on
this. And there is no question in ny mnd Magna wil |
conply with all laws at the tine that it's appropriate
And at this point Magna doesn't have a plan to televise
races.

You do or you don't, or it's in progress, or
what ?

MR, TUNNEY: The question is, are we going to, on
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January the 1st, have advanced deposit wagering?

MR, HARRIS: O sonme nechanismto get a television
signal or even a conmputer-based signal on your races in
hol es?

MR. LIEBAU. We're not in a position, M. Harris,
to cormment on that at this time. It is premature. And we
wi Il hopefully be filing an application for approval of a

mul tijurisdictional hub outside of California or for a hub
inside of California that would be licensed by the
California Horse Raci ng Board.

MR. TOURTELOT: | don't believe it is incunbent
upon -- at all for Magna to reveal their plans in order to
have this application approved.

MR. LIEBAU. If it's a problem we have no objection
to the reference to T.V.G and u-bet being del eted.

MR. TOURTELOT: Well, it's been no secret to the

world that Magna, at sone point, appears likely to have
its own systemin conmpetiton to T.V.G, and that's why it
only entered into non- -- the agreements were nonexcl usive
here. They only entered into nonexclusive agreenments with
T.V.G

So it's been no secret that Magna has, in
fact, a corporate mnd in the idea to use its own system

And you don't have to -- | don't see that you have to tel
us all of your plans at this point. 1It's not really
relevant to this application.

MR HARRIS: | think it is because if we're

approving this application it goes through March of next
year. And we need to have sone feel for how --

MR. TOURTELOT: It is not --

MR, LI EBAU:. | can represent and undertake to the
California Horse Racing Board that no affiliate with Magna
wi || conduct advanced deposit wagering in California
wi t hout receiving the proper approvals fromthe horsenen
and the California Horse Racing Board.

And also, | said that if the |isting of
T.V.G and U-bet represent a problem that we have no
obj ection to them bei ng del et ed.
MR, TOURTELOT: | don't see where you have to
del ete them
The fact of the matter is that you have to
conme back to the Board and to the horsemen to inplenent a

future plan. | don't see that it's incunbent upon Magna
to have to tell us today what their plans are. If | were
Magna | would resist that. | don't thinks it's necessary

to the approval of this application that we hear what you
m ght plan to be doing in the future.

At this point, all we knowis that you wll
follow the law. And you have made representation that you
will follow the [aw and you'll come back to the Board and
tell us the horsemen's future plans, and that's
satisfactory to this comr ssioner

Any ot her comments from any ot her
conmi ssi oners or the audi ence?

MR. LI EBAU. For purposes of the record, have



21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
0021
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
0022
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

T.V.G and U-bet been deleted fromthe application?

MR, TOURTELOT: |'m not asking you to.
MR, HARRIS: | don't think that you should do that.
As | understand it, if we're going to do that
we should al so, | mean, back up Pennsyl vania. Because
they're in the sanme district.
MR, LIEBAU: OCh, no. | would object to that.

Ladbr oke, Pennsylvania takes call bets in

Pennsyl vani a and we send our signal to them There is no
jurisdiction of the California Horse Racing Board over
Ladbr oke, Pennsylvania offering wagers to the Pennsyl vani a
resi dents.

MR, TOURTELOT: But if it offered wagers to
California residents --

MR. LI EBAU. No.
MR. TOURTELOT: Anyway, quit when you're ahead.
MR LIEBAU:. | did.
MR, TOURTELOT: | don't see any reason to go into
that any further.
And the Chair will entertain a nmotion to

approve the application on Item Nunber 3 on the agenda.

MS. GRANZELLA: So noved
MR, TOURTELOT: Second?
MR. LANDSBURG. Second.
MR, TOURTELOT: All in favor?
MR. BI ANCO Aye.
MS. GRANZELLA: Aye.
MR HARRIS: Aye.
MR. LANDSBURG. Aye.
MR LICHT: Aye.
M5. MORETTI: Aye.
MR. TOURTELOT: Aye.
Opposed?
Okay. Thank you.
Everybody take a deep breath. |tem nunber 4;

di scussion and action on the all ocation of the Northern

Fair and thoroughbred race dates for 2002.

Now, |et nme say that under "Conmittee
Reports,"” item 10, it says "report fromthe Race Dates
Conmittee.” And | think that is kind of putting things
backwards. And al though the report is not going to be
very long, |I'mgoing to nake the report, and
Conmi ssioner Harris will assist me in that regard of any
comments he has.

Before we go into the discussion and action
on Item4, that doesn't seemto nmake nmuch sense to give
you a report of what happened yesterday after we vote.

As nmost of you know, the Race Dates Comittee
met yesterday for a couple hours. And we had in our
possession a very extensive presentation by CA R F. on
behal f of the California affairs, and a very extensive
presentation -- witten presentation -- that was presented
to all of the commi ssioners and to the Race Dates
Committee by Magna, regardi ng Magna, regarding the
situation in California.
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The neeting brought forth basically the sane
argunents on either side that we've been hearing. And
think we've had three -- three Race Dates Committees neet,
which is in my eight years' tenure on the Board. It was
unpr ecedent ed.

And as we expl ai ned yesterday that while
there are a nunber of factions who believe that
recommendati on that we have been maki ng, the Race Dates
Committee and, recently, the Northern California Fair

versus the -- versus San Mateo -- Bay Meadows, the
overlap, that we were wong. | explained that, as
M. -- Conmi ssioner Harris and | have spent many, many,

many hours westling with this, and as Conmmi ssioner Harris
said, you know, there have probably been many, nmany

sl eepl ess nights. Because whether everyone in the room
believes it or not, and | think nost of you do, we have
only done what we believe, in our mnds, what's best for
California racing overall, for the best of Northern
California and for the industry in the state of

Cal i fornia.

Even the representatives from Magna agreed
yesterday that reasonable mnds can disagree on this. |
have said before, and I'Il say it again, that in ny
opi nion the present nunber of racing dates in Northern
California is higher than the horse popul ati on can
sustain. Mgna disagrees with ne. Okay. That's fine.

The fact is that we have shorter fields. And
they say it's because the trainers are not running the
horses back often enough. W had a | ady yesterday who
said she ran her horse back 19 ti mes.

MR. LANDSBURG. I n three nonths.

MR. TOURTELOT: In three nonths. W need to clone
that horse. That's the whole answer to the horse
popul ati on problem That if we clone that horse, then
we' ve done it. We don't have to worry about this anynore.

But all joking aside, it's true. The |ady
did say that.

Magna di sagrees. And we believe that the
overlap -- that the problemis exaggerated by overl apping
the race dates.

For eight years |'ve sat on this Board. And
for one year, fortunately, | had to sit on the Race Dates
Conmittee. And this is nmy last neeting today. But if it
weren't, | can tell you that | would not be putting ny
hand up for the job next year of race dates chairman.
Because for $100 a nonth, it's just not worth it, | tell
you.

Anyway, the fact of the matter is, is that we
have tried to do what we believe is best. For eight years
|'"ve sat here and listened to the reports of the race
dates committee. And every year it's a Band-Aid.

Everybody -- not everybody -- a |ot of people agreed we
had a problem We had a problemwith filling the field,
and we had too much racing. 1In all of the eight years

|'"ve heard from people, "it's too nmuch racing in



19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
0025
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
0026
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

California." And you can say, "Well, cut down to one race

a day." No. [It's just too nmany -- it's too nuch racing.
So we set out to finally bite the bullet,
the race coonmittee. And we came up with -- after a |ot of

i nput and hard work, we came up with a reduction of,
thi nk, either 18 or 19 days.

And then the poo-poo hit the fan. And we
were -- the barrage hit us that we were destroying racing
in California, and we were going to destroy racing in
Northern California. And sone of the people thought that

who are sitting here today.

And on the other side of the coin we were
appl auded by the media and ot her people that this was
finally -- the California Horse Racing Board was taking
hol d of this problemand was going to do sonething. And
that those riders hoped that we didn't back off and
succunb to the pressure that was nost certainly going to
be exerted on us by certain factions of the industry.

Well, tine will tell about that.
We, though, did reduce the 18 days to 19 days
in Northern California. And still people are running

around yelling like Chicken Little that the sky is
falling. And I don't think the sky is falling.

And | hope this Board will have the gunption
to not be persuaded by these argunents that, yes, there is
a problem but we're going to fix it another way. 1've
heard that for eight years. You all haven't sat here for
ei ght years, but | have. And the problemis just getting
wor se.

And to the laborer |I say, yes. | hate to see
cutting out days when your workers will | ose pay. But
what we're trying to do is to save racing and inprove
racing so that your workers will have sonething to | ook
forward to; that racing in Northern California inproves.
It's going downhill. And anybody that thinks it's
i mproving right here has been on sonme island. And the
| abor, | want to see labor flourish. But the racing has

to flourish or you won't have the jobs.

And when | went before Senator Burton for ny
confirmation and my second appoi ntnment, Senator Burton

said -- instead of giving me any normal questions -- "Wat
do you think about one racetrack in California?" | said,
"I don't know what you're tal king about."” He said, "Look
at the situation.”™ This was four years ago. He said,
"Look at the situation. Look at the numbers."” And

said, "Well, | can see, Senator, nmaybe one racetrack in
the future sonme day in Southern California and one in
Northern California. But | don't know about one" -- but

anyway. That was the discussion that Senator Burton
wanted to pursue in 1993.

So we believe very sincerely,
Commi ssioner Harris and I, that the present number of race
dates is higher than the horse popul ation can sustain.

You have heard the argunent. You've read the
articles from Magna. And very well presented by very
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bri ght peopl e who put together an excellent presentation.
Very hel pful. A very tough deci sion.
| told Magna yesterday that if | could wave a

magi ¢ wand and nake everybody happy, 1'd do it in a
second. |'mnot out to hurt Bay Meadows. M job is to
try to do the best | can for horse racing. |'mgoing to
be off this Board next week. So it would be the easiest
thing for ne to say, "We'll just do what we did | ast
time. "

But | know, | know, that a Band-Aid is not
going to work again. |It's what you all have been doing

for eight years. Everybody, everybody has to give in if
we're going to nove forward to help Northern California.

So |I'm speaking nore to the people on ny |eft
than on ny right, that they have the strength to see
t hrough the argunments that have been presented, and to
vote in favor of the Race Dates Committee recomendation
which is that we keep it as it was presented at the | ast
meeti ng.

MR, HARRIS: | think that M. Tourtel ot explained
it very well. It has been a real agonizing tine and
don't think any one schedul e, anybody coul d absol utely say
is the best schedul e versus anot her schedul e.

We just try to come up with something that we
t hought bal anced the different needs of the state. And
respect all the different parties and that we have
different feelings about it.

And part of the problemor challenge that
we're trying to come up with is we don't know, really, how
things work out until we've tried them But the intent of
a racing | aw does have -- in the intent |anguage
supporting the network of the California fairs -- that
gi ves us sone inclination of the intent to do something to
support the fairs.

It also has | anguage that says, "provide for
maxi mum expansi on of horse racing opportunities in the
public interest." So if we left out "in the public
interest" and we just had "maxi mum expansi on of horse
raci ng opportunities," we would probably deregul ate days

and just have everybody run whatever dates they wanted to
run because that conceivably woul d expand the
opportunities.

But | think the public interest is to have
some systematic nethodolgy to allocate the dates to the
public's interest, which | interpret as keeping the
i nterest of racing and enploynent and the overall strength
of racing as sonmething that the public is interested in.

And |'mjust concerned about field size in
the North that we keep seeing that attrition, especially
at the mgjor neetings, and dropping a few days here or
there may help them

But it is a tough issue. But we did spend a
lot of tinme onit. And | don't feel great about the whole
subj ect anynore. And | wish | never heard of racing
dates. But | think Bob and | did cone to this concl usion
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that these dates are what we feel will work in 2002.

MR, TOURTELOT: |'m going to add one nore thing.

We did recomend, with respect to Sol ano

County, the Vallejo Fair, that July 15th, which is a
Monday, woul d be added back into the schedul e, which
previ ously was supposed to be dark. And that we add that
one day so that the fair starts -- on the 12th it opens.
But the racing starts on the 10th of July. So they would
end up having, let's see, 11 days. So the recommendation
of the Race Dates Conmmittee is to add the 15th of July to
the Vallejo program And there will be basically no
objection to that. Nobody got up and yelled and screaned.

MR. HARRI'S: | think, too, that we would strongly
encour age any di scussi ons between Bay Meadows -- between
San Mateo County Fair and Sol ano County Fair to switch
their dates and provide that turf racing. And | don't
know i f that could happen for this year

And al so we woul d encourage Sol ano to do
everything they can to revitalize their operation. That
they are one fair that definitely is of concern.

MR, TOURTELOT: All right. Let's segregate --
segue rather -- frommy report into now a discussion with
respect to this item And the commissioners all have sone
conmments. And Conmmi ssioner Mretti first, and then

everyone will have an opportunity to say what they want.
MS. MORETTI: Thank you.
First of all, excuse ne. | have had a

terrible head cold in the |ast few days so not all the
brain parts may be flowing in the perfect formation today.
But | have given this a lot of thought. And
at the last neeting | started off by thanking -- and | do
t hank again -- the comm ssioners who undertook this
horrible task. | think that it was certainly a very
t horough job. And I have a few different thoughts,
comments and concerns to raise. So |I'mjust going to go
t hrough them
After the last neeting it was pointed out to
me, and that there were two reports that were done back in
1994 and 1995 that, | believe, the rest of the
commi ssioners -- | asked themif they would ask the staff

to send it to them
These reports were reports to the California

Horse Racing Industry -- or fromthe California Horse
Raci ng I ndustry Advisory Commttee to the California Horse
Raci ng Board, | believe. And anong the conmittee were

very respected nenbers of the horse racing industry
t hroughout the state, including nmy fellow comr ssioner
M . Landsburg here.

VWhat | found interesting in the reports is
there is a nyriad of issues that were | ooked at. License
fee relief was suggested. And thanks to Senator Maddi we
have licensing fee relief in the state.

Overl ap of dates was suggested to be
elimnated. And it never happened, obviously. All these
years |l ater we've got the same issue. Every year we're
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going to be looking at the sane issue. And, | think,
again, as | mentioned last tinme, we've got a solution to
the wong problem to the wwong issue. | think that we
need to -- and this won't happen today -- | know we need
to give you the dates so that Northern California can
proceed.

But as | also had nentioned, | really think
that this is an issue -- dates is an issue that needs to
be thought of not just for a certain period during the
year, but over a long period of tine. Because things
aren't what they used to be.

So to go back to when there was no overlap
may not meke sense. May, but | don't think it does.

Horse racing is no | onger just viewed as a sport, no
matter how nuch we want to say it is. W don't even cal

it a sport. We don't call it a team W don't call it a
| eague. We call it an industry. And, indeed, it is an
i ndustry. It's a business. And, of course,

reliant, totally reliant, on the people, the athlete --
the horse and the human athlete. But it is a 24-7
business. And there are a | ot of conponents that we need
to deal with on that.

I think that the Board needs to go in and --
and | was going to try to talk to you, Tom before I said
this. But, | nean, | think that we need to -- our charge
is to protect the public, to protect the industry and the
integrity of the industry. But I'mnot so sure that we
need that provision in there that says that the Horse
Raci ng Board al | ocat es dates.

Now, maybe what we need to do is go in and
forma committee to explore whether or not we need
| egi slative action to change the statute. Maybe there is
a reason for that that |1'm not aware of, or thinking of at
the nonent. Perhaps it's an allocation of days, not
dates, that we need to give to these industries -- to the
fairs and the associations. And |let the businesses work
out what dates they want to run, when they want to run.
So if they do want to have a break, as T.O C. suggested
between -- along the break at Christnmas, then as a
busi ness, you can deternine that.

But | think that that's -- and |I'm not saying

that any of these things are the solution. [|'mjust
saying that there is a lot of different things that we
need to | ook at. W need to be innovative. And | just
don't see that happening.

In fact, back in 1994 and '95 they addressed
this issue. It wasn't a new issue, it was an issue that
had been going for a long time, which is why they had to
have brought this in. But here it is 2001, and we don't
have people on either side of the fence still -- | nean
this is supposed to be one industry. And it's not com ng
together. How in the heck can we market ourselves and get
nore fan base if we're constantly fighting?

I think that there are sonme hard deci sions
that have to be made. And | think the fairs have to nake
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some hard decisions. And I'mfor elimnating overlap, but
it mght not nake sense. Maybe the fairs need to sit down
and say, okay, you know, Solano, San Mateo, Cal Expo,
we' ve got these dates but they're not the right tine on
the cal endar. Maybe we do need to switch them around.
maybe we just -- the thoroughbred. |'mnot talking about
t he harness and the other breeds at the noment. | think
we need to have a program where that dial ogue takes
pl ace.

| don't nean to be ranbling, but | have
t hought about this a lot. And | think that we really need
to give consideration to a lot of these things. And, you
know, the idea of -- Ron Liccardo had an idea that we
shoul d have potentially fewer races per day as opposed to

fewer racing dates, days. And, you know, | could say --
turn around and say, "W need larger fields,” which is
actually, | think, nore the problemthan anything el se.

And as our chairman just stated, we don't have enough
horse popul ation in Northern California.
So perhaps we do need to visit the idea of
rai sing the requirenents for certain nmandates and certain
conditions and classes of races per larger field sizes.
Last year -- and | don't renenmber what
nmeeting -- Rick Baedeker had mentioned that |ast-mnute
scratches were causing a lot of short field sizes. Well
if that's what's happening, then let's think about
penalties for those last-m nute scratches. You know,
there is a |ot of other things that can be thought about.
And | all I'mdoing is, | want to raise these
i ssues because | truly think that in order for us to go
ahead and not have the same di scussion next year and the
year after and the year after, we need to just restructure
and rethink our job as a Board, in that sense, w thout
conmprom sing our ability to protect the public. But, you
know, the public is also the betting public. So if they
have short fields, then they want to bet on the horses.
So there are all these variables in there.
| support the fairs. But penalizing the
fairs and penalizing the Northern California tracks is not
fair. So, you know, | don't think that we should penalize
the fairs, but | don't think we should penalize the
busi ness that is feeding and supporting horse races in

California, which is Bay Meadows and Col den Gate.

So, with that, I will just say that, you
know, the industry needs to reevaluate. And | think that
the Horse Raci ng Board needs to reevaluate as well

MR, TOURTELOT: Thank you, Conm ssioner Moretti.
As usual, you're very bright and thoughtful, and you do
give a lot of thought and attention to these issues.
think that everybody here on the Board and in the audience
appreci ates your participation. And, again, as | said, |
think it's very healthy, your recomendati on that the
Board continue to review the processes. And just because
they're there, doesn't nean that they're right
necessarily.
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So in the future, | would encourage you to
continue the type of thinking that you're bringing to this
Board. And that is, let's | ook at what we have and how
does it work rather than just accepting it. And | don't
necessarily agree with everything you said, but that's not
the point.

Commi ssi oner Licht?

MR, LICHT: First of all, | appreciate the work of
the Conmittee. | know you guys really have spent a | ot of
time. And, naturally, |'ve given due consideration to

your recomendati ons.

| have | ooked at this 19401 of the B and P
Code at length. And to ne the things that stand out are
the encouragi ng the breeding of horses and increasing the
horse racing opportunities in the public interest. And

don't believe that |oss of dates to major tracks |ike
Bay Meadows is going to encourage the breeding of horses.

Fresno raci ng does not encourage the breeding
of horses. Stockton racing does not increase (sic) the
breedi ng of horses. Quality racing inproves it. And
that's the reason the field sizes are down is because |ess
horses are being bred. And that's the only reason, in ny
mnd, that field sizes are down.

I've | ooked at the statistics supplied by the
fairs and by Magna, and |I'm not convinced that the snaller
field sizes have anything to do with overlap. |
absol utely am not convi nced of that.

And probably forenmpbst on ny mind is the |oss
of jobs. | mean, labor is an inportant part of this
i ndustry. And there is going to be an enornous amount of
days lost as a result of taking away these dates from

Bay Meadows. And | just can't condone that. And if you
add to that the loss of purse noney to the horsenmen, which
is gone. It doesn't cone back. That nobney is just gone

once those dates are gone.

And, yeah, long-term nmmybe the industry wll
be hel ped. But npbst horsenen today, owners, trainers,
everybody associated with it, need noney today. They
don't need to hope that the industry is somehow going to
be better in the future as a result of the |oss of dates.

MR, TOURTELOT: | just picked up on one word you
said, or sentence; long-term maybe they'l|l be helped. You
know, and | suppose you can be saying that in another four

years, "long-term maybe they'll be hel ped.”

The problemis here today. And as |'ve said,
|'ve been hearing about the problemfor eight years.
Nobody has done anything. There are a few Band-Ai ds that
have been, quote, "banded around," excuse the pun. And
here we're tal king about in long-termmmybe it will be
hel ped. But right now we need the purses. Right now
Labor needs their wages. And | agree. In a perfect
world, all of that -- everybody gets what they want. But
what we're trying to do is to inprove the horse racing in
Northern California and throughout the state.

This is an experinent. And, you know, to say
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| ong-term maybe it will be hel ped, but right now we have
to have a status quo because we're going to hurt the
horsenmen and we're going to hurt the |labor. Everybody has
to give. It isn't going to work in the future if it's not
going to help build racing.

So with all due respect, Commi ssioner Licht,
I think you're doing the same thing that the | ast eight
Boards have done. In the |long-term maybe sonething wl |
help. But right nowlet's just keep it the way it is so
that nobody | oses their bottomline for next year

Anybody el se?

MR. LANDSBURG. My fax nmchi ne groans under the

wei ght of the paper that's cone in. M mnd boggles at
t he amount of paper. 1'mdelighted to have read it,
al though it has hurt my eyes.

Now, my one conmment was we have to start

thinking out of the box. | agree with
Conmi ssioner Moretti that we can't be limted by what
we've just done. | find that recomendati on of the Race

Dates Committee, and | truly respect their integrity and
the work they put in, but | disagree with it.

The thinking out of the box is, why not add
overlap days? Now, in adding overlap days, as nany as

five or six to neetings -- I"'mgoing to hear the scream
I can hear it com ng out of some people saying, "We don't
have enough horses.” But we've been hearing that scream

for too long, and there is no bl oody proof.

We have a lot of racing. There is no bl oody
proof that the racing at fairs and up North, and at one of
the major tracks up North does, in fact, not have enough
horses to run a program The nore programs we run, the
nore handl e conmes in; the nore handle comes in, the nore
noney is available for horses and purses. So let's not
limt it to a two-day experinment. The two-day experi nent
is the kind of Band-Aid, with all due respect,
Conmi ssi oner Tourtelot, is the sane kind of Band-Aid that
we' ve been appl yi ng.

When we | ooked at this problemin 1994, when
I was a nenber of the advisory commttee, we were nuch
nor e concerned about how simul cast racing would affect the
outcone of racing here in California. Wuld it dimnnish
or increase? Clearly what we were worried about was
getting our signal out; clearly what we were worried about
was how we did it, and that was the main thrust of those

meet i ngs.

But in terns of horse population, we are at a
monment in tinme when we do not know how horse popul ati ons
actually affect it. |If we increase racing as an
experiment, increase overlapping days, we will find
ourselves in a position to be able to judge whether it was
econoni cal ly advant ageous or not. At this point in tinme
we' re tal ki ng about an industry struggling for economc
survival and econom c fl ourishing.

We're also struggling with an industry that
has not, to the best of nmy know edge -- and you ni ght
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prove me wrong, and | woul d hope you could prove ne

wrong -- has never had a determ ned and sustai ned nove to
bring new horses to this environnent, to bring other
horses to this environnment.

Vet her it meant outlays of dollars, whether
it meant having people in other racetracks consistently,
not for one little quick breast stroke, but stationed
there to nmove horses from other race

tracks and other venue states to us. | amdeterm ned that
it has never been done as a really sustained effort by
this industry. If we're really concerned about horse

popul ation, it's one of the areas we nust attack

I would opt, as | say, for nore days to prove
or not prove. Two days is not going to prove or not
prove.

Thank you.
MR, TOURTELOT: Wth all due respect,
M. Landsburg, |'ve heard your speech before. And to say
that this is just a Band-Aid, well, then it cones down to

the size of the Band-Aid. The Band-Aid has been, in
part --
MR. LANDSBURG  Excuse ne, Sir.

MR, TOURTELOT: -- to be for paper cuts.

MR. LANDSBURG It's an experinment. We're in an
experiment. This is a two-day experinment. |'mopting for
nmore, that's all

MR. TOURTELOT: | don't know what that neans.

MR, LANDSBURG. |'mopting for nore days within the

experiment. More proof. That's it.

MR, TOURTELOT: Then we need to do that next year
because we're not going to have another Race Dates
Conmittee. At least |I'mnot because | won't be here.
You're saying you want to add nore, well, then add nore
next year. But we're talking about -- | nmean, you're
going to throw the baby out with the bath water and reject
the Committee's reconmendati on because you want nore?

MR. LANDSBURG |I'msorry. | just don't agree with
it.

MR, TOURTELOT: |In any event, | would say that
we're not using a Band-Aid. But |I've heard what you said
for eight years. | heard it in Tucson when | first came
on board. It will be interesting. So |I'll cone next year
to hear what the Conmittee says.

Anybody el se?
MS. GRANZELLA: 1'd like to say sonething.

I, too, amsick and tired of what? Making
$100 for all this pain and suffering that we're going
t hrough here.

I'"'mnot going to repeat what everybody el se
has said. | think -- | do believe | have all the synpathy
and enpathy in the world for the fairs. And | know there
are all the little guys out there trying to make it, and
t hey probably | ook at Magna as the big guy and trying to
control everything.

However, | do believe that Magna and
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Bay Meadows are being punished unnecessarily. | really
do. | think that there is sone other conpromn se out

there. | think they bit the bullet the worst. And

just can't agree with taking so many days as they've
gotten taken away fromthem And | have | ooked at all the
nunbers for the overlap, and everything, and | believe
overlap -- not total overlap, but | think some overlap is
good for the industry.

The people that work in Northern California,
you know, for Magna, or whatever, the | abor and
everything, they're going to get hurt bad. And |I'mbig on
| abor, and I don't want to see themget hurt. So that's
all | have to say.

MR. TOURTELOT: It seens to ne that -- | think what
we're looking for is the handwiting on the wall

It seens to ne that we have a coupl e of
choi ces here. One, we could can go ahead and call for a
vote, which | think I"'ma pretty good counter of votes

after hearing everyone's view. | understand -- oh, Bill,
I"'msorry. | asked if anybody el se wanted to say anything
and nobody said anything. So --
MR. BI ANCO  No problem

["mstill serving nmy apprenticeship and ||
be very frank with you.

Wth the anount of reading material and the
research and the analytical results that |I've come up

with, | would hate to see us cut any of the dates at

Bay Meadows. | know that the econony and the state in
Northern California is a little bit weak right now. And
even consi deri ng what happened | ast Tuesday, | hate to see

anybody | ose any type of enploynment, whether it's a day
or whether it's a week.

| don't like to put Band-Aids on things. And
| believe what |'ve been hearing, | think that there has
to be some changes or sone way of trying to get nore
facets into our industry, especially in Northern
California.

I would not Iike to see us cut any of the
dates because of labor, and that's the way |I feel. | fee
I"'mnot of a journeyman status yet because |'ve only sat
here for about four or five nmonths. But | do feel that
the information |I've been given, right, | would hate to
try to cut any of the dates in this type of econony that
we have right now

So I"'min agreement with Marie, Sheryl and

Roger.

Thank you.

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you very nuch.

How ever the Board votes is not going to
bother me. | know that | did what | was sworn to do and
came up with a conclusion. Hey, folks, I've been wong
before. I'ma trial lawer. And sone of the guys on the

other side don't agree with ne and sonetines the judge
doesn't agree with my position. So that's nothing newto
me. And | don't get bothered by it. As long as | can say
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that 1'm happy with nmy vote, and |I'm happy with what |
did. And | didn't conme to that conclusion because of any
i nfluence on any side, or any agenda. This is just a
fact. And other people disagree. And there are very
bri ght people on the Board and in the audience. It
doesn't bother ne one bit.

What we come down to is we have two choices.
We have one, we can call for the vote. The vote is going
to be to deny the -- not approve the reconmendati on of the
Race Dates Conmittee. And where does that |eave us?
Because we have not come up with an alternative proposal
| guess you could do it, M. Reagan, fairly quickly,

but -- and the Board could instruct you to do that, and
that's what you would go forward on. |If that's the
Board's preference, that's what we do

O maybe -- and I'mnot really in favor of
this -- we could defer this between the next Board
meeting, and other nenbers of the Board will be on the

Race Dates Committee. And |I'mnot saying that because |I'm

throwing my hands up. I'mlegally off the Board, so
can't do it. | don't want sonmeone to take that the wong
way. So it's up to the Board of how you want to proceed

| pretty well know what you're going to --

MR HARRIS: | think | agree with
Chairman Tourtelot. And | would support going forward
wi th whatever the Board wants to do. But probably what
woul d work woul d be some kind of a notion to amend our
recommendation to reinstate those overlap dates. But |
don't feel confortable nmeking that notion.

But | think that the whole thing is that |
hope that we're terribly wong and that the field size
this fall and next year at Bay Meadows are outstanding.
woul d urge everyone on the Board to | ook at those entries
every day and see if racing is really healthy under this
situation or not.

MR. LICHT: M. Chairman, | would |ike to nove that
the recommendati on of the Committee be anended so that the
overlap is reinstated and the dates are as they have been
in the past.

MR. TOURTELOT: Well, that doesn't quite work.

MR. HARRIS: | think if you just reinstate that, in
2002 the comittee recomrendati on woul d be amended and not
i nclude the two --

MR. LICHT: The two days in Fresno?

MR. HARRIS: You'd get two days back in Fresno and
two days back in Stockton.

MR. TOURTELOT: You have the overlap -- excuse ne.

We have the additional day in Vallejo. | don't know why
you throw t hat out.
MR. LICHT: No. That should be included.

And so the overlap in Stockton will be two
days, or the overlap in Fresno two days nore, and the
Vall ejo receive the one more day on a Monday.

MR. TOURTELOT: Let nme just say first -- | think
there are people comng forward.
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| don't think we need discussion on this and
"Il tell you why. Because if | thought that you could go
to the other side of the island, or whatever side that is
that supports the fairs, or supports our recommendation
could convince the other comission, |'d stay here unti
5:00 and let you talk. But | don't think you're going to
convi nce them

So, therefore, the Chair is going to ask that
you really not get up here and argue your position because
we've all received all of your materials and letters and
phone calls and three Race Dates Committees. This Board
seens pretty clear on their views. | respect those. And
I think we're, sorry to say, wasting everyone's tine to
have a debate fromthe audience. So | would ask for none
of that.

MR, WOOD: M. Chairman, can | respectfully request
that you give M. Reagan an opportunity to read the
instituted dates so we can read theminto the record so we
can get this correct? |If we start junping around two days
here and there without letting himhave a chance to read

theminto the record, the exact dates -- we want to be
very precise

MR. TOURTELOT: Absol utely.

MR. BLAKE: M. Chairman, although further audience
coments may not be very productive, it is legally
required that we provide an opportunity for anybody who
shoul d feel that they absolutely have to say a word.

MR, TOURTELOT: | think I've provided it.
MR, WOOD: Let's |let M. Reagan give us the dates
and then we'll ask for notions once he gives us the exact

dat es.

MR. TOURTELOT: But | want to just say that if
sonmebody gets up and starts arguing their position about
the fairs, if | hear again from Magna's position, | have
to say, why are you doing this? Because | see everybody
sitting on the edge of the chairs ready to talk. About
what? What are you going to tal k about?

Go ahead.

MR. REAGAN:. John Reagan, R-e-a-g-a-n, C.H R B.
staff.

Conmi ssioners, what is before us now are the
race dates for Northern California. You have already
approved the first portion of Golden Gate Fields through
March 31st, 2002.

So let's continue then to today. You would
be |l ooking at April 3rd, 2002, through June 16th, at
Bay Meadows for an amended anount of 55 days now. And
back at Bay Meadows on August 30th, through 11/11,

Novenber 11th, for a total of 55 days. And coming back to
Gol den Gate Fields on November 14th through Decenber 22nd
for 29 days.
The fairs; Stockton, 6/12 through 6/23 for
10 days.
Pl easanton, 6/26 through 7/7 for 11 days.
Val l ejo, 7/10 through 7/21 for 11 days.
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Santa Rosa, 7/24 through 8/5 for 12 days.
San Mateo, 8/7 through 8/19 for 12 days.
Ferndal e, 8/8 through 8/ 18 for 10 days.
Sacrament o, Cal Expo, 8/21 through 9/2 for
12 days.
And Fresno, 10/2 through 10/14 for 11 days.

M5. MORETTI: John, does that nmake Sol ano whol e
agai n?

MR, REAGAN: Not quite. They |ose one day conpared
to this year.

MR, TOURTELOT: | suppose that we already gave two
notions, for ny benefit; one to approve only that aspect
of the Race Dates Conmittee recomendati on which
pertains to giving back the date of July to Vallejo. And
then two, to approve the anmended resolution that gives
back the dates that John has read. Because |I'm not going
to vote for this. [I'mjust going to take -- not out of --
but it's just a fact that | don't believe you're correct.
And so | couldn't | ook nyself in the mrror if | voted for
it. So lI'mgoing to stick with what | recomended and not
vote for it.

But I do want to vote for Vallejo. That's
why | say we have two resolutions so that |'mnot stuck
that | can't vote for the Vallejo one.

Does anybody have any comrents on that?

MR. LICHT: | make both those notions. The first
notion being that the Race Dates Committee, with respect
to Vallejo, be accepted. And the second being that the
raci ng dates be anended, as reported by John Reagan.

MR, TOURTELOT: Okay. We'll take the first one.
And do | have a second on the first one?

LANDSBURG.  Second.
TOURTELOT: All in favor?
Bl ANCO:  Aye.
GRANZELLA: Aye.
HARRI S:  Aye.
LANDSBURG: Aye.
LI CHT: Aye.
MORETTI :  Aye.
TOURTELOT:  Aye.
Opposed?
Okay. That carried unani nously.
And do | have a second on --
LANDSBURG:  Second.
TOURTELOT: Second by Comm ssi oner Landsburg.
Al in favor?
All those in favor raise your hand.
Bl ANCO.  Aye.
LANDSBURG: Aye.

SEEEEEEEE

3%

GRANZELLA: Aye.
LI CHT: Aye.
TOURTELOT:  You have four in favor. Ckay.
And you have their nanes?
All those against, raise your hands.
HARRI S:  Aye.

235 33

2
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MR TOURTELOT: Aye.

You have those nanes?

Two opposed.

Now, anybody abstaining, raise their hands.

MS. MORETTI: Aye.
MR, TOURTELOT: That notion passed.

I want to echo what Comm ssioner Harris said.
And that is | hope that we are both | aughi ngstocks of the
i ndustry in a couple of years and proven wong, and that
we were going down the wwong track. Because all we care
about is --

MR. KORBY: M. Chairman, on behal f of --
Chris Korby, California Authority of Racing Affairs.

I just want to thank the Race Dates Comittee
for all the tinme and work they put into it. | know it was
an agoni zing and difficult job. And thank you,
commi ssioners, for your consideration here.

We don't agree with this allocation, but
that's the rule of the Board. W'IIl respect it and abide
by it.

And once again, thank you for all your effort
and consi deration.

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you very much, Chris.

The next itemon the Agenda is the discussion
and action by the Board on the approval of the annua
distribution of a portion of the unclained refund nonies,
adjusted for inflation, to the Jockeys' Guild Health and
Wel fare Trust, pursuant to Business and Professions Code
Section 19612. 9.

MR. REAGAN:. Conmi ssioners -- John Reagan, C. H R B.
staff.

This proposed distribution was requested by
the Jockeys CGuild last year. As indicated in the staff
anal ysis, we sent them $591,460. This noney cones out of
the refunds, the uncashed refunds, that are being held by
the racetracks as we speak. And on a prorated basis we
have each of the tracks send their portion to the trust
that has been set up by the Jockeys Guild in contact with
the T.O C. That nmoney then is held in the trust unti
such tinme as the Jockeys Guild spends their noney on the
health care costs. Those costs are audited, and that
noney is reinmbursed fromthe trust. That's what we've
been doi ng since 1997.

And at this point, the issue each year, of
course, is what is the percentage, the nmedical inflation
costs? | think you probably have all read stories and
heard about the Jockey Guild and the difficulty they had
with their health -- welfare and health insurance. Even
the State of California that | work for is talking about
doubl e-digit increases. |In sone cases, certain plans,

8 or 9 percent, other plans 10, 15, 20.

So when the jockeys suggested 15 percent, a
qui ck review indicated that for a small group of people in
a somewhat high-risk industry, a high-risk job, that
15 percent was certainly not unreasonable.
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And | think I've seen the representative of
the Guild here today. And if they have sonething to say
or if you would like to go 15 percent, that's certainly up
to you.

MR. TOURTELOT: Any comments from any of the
conmi ssi oners?

MR. HARRIS: |I'mnot clear. This trust fund,
essentially the jockeys organization, is a sole
beneficiary of that?

MR. REAGAN:. The California Jockeys are the
ultimate beneficiaries.

MR, HARRIS: So all of this stays in California?

MR. REAGAN:. The nponey is actually sent to a trust
in Lexington where the Guild has their headquarters.
That's where the trust is |ocated.

But the money is spent on the California
jockeys with their health and welfare, dental and other
things. And those are, kind of, calculated every six
nmonths. And a bill is then presented -- an audited bil
is then presented to the trust and the Jockeys CGuild is
rei mbur sed.

MR. HARRI'S: How nuch does the trust have in it
al t oget her ?

MR. REAGAN: Good question

Since we instituted this program | worked it
out with the trust and they send me -- Well first of al
they started sending me quarterly statenents. But for
sonme reason this year they started sending me nonthly
statenents.

But as of August 31st we were tal king about
just over $88,000 was in the trust at this point. And we
woul d be adding to that $680,000. That would be -- the
total of those two numbers woul d approxi mate pretty nuch
what the Guild spent from June 30 of 2001 through June 30
of 2002 -- I'msorry. 2000 and 2001. The |last fisca
year in terns of the State.

And so that comes up -- the mathematics cones
out pretty close. And with these possible increases
they're facing, we may still be chasing that.

An interesting point here is that the
uncashed refunds from which this noney comes, the contract
and the nature of the law is such that at some point if
the health care cost increased to the point where they
exceed what's available in terns of refunds, all we have
to give themis what is in the refund anount.

MR, HARRIS: That's what | was wondering. How much
a year is the --

MR, REAGAN: This year we had just under 900, 000
generated in uncl ai med refunds for that purpose. There
are still a couple hundred thousand or nore from prior
years that we could call upon if we had to. At this

poi nt, we don't have to.

But once again, unclainmed refunds are one of
those variables. Next year it could be 500,000 if we get
i nto account wagering, and nobody has to cash their
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refunds if they are sinply automatically credited.

So there is sonme downside here. And it may
be that in a couple of years here with increasing costs
and | ower refunds, we may cone to a point where we need
900, 000 for this programthis year and you say, all we've
got is 800- --

MR. HARRI'S: Well, whatever we have is the --

MR. REAGAN: Yeah. That's the maxi mum

MR, HARRIS: | guess what we have is grow ng
interest, so it's going up alittle bit. | was just
trying to get a handle on how that works.

MR, REAGAN: Sure.

MR, HARRIS: So the 680,000 going to, effectively,
a group of California jockeys for health insurance.

MR. REAGAN: Right.

MR. HARRI S: But how many jockeys are there that
effectively benefitted fromthe progranf

MR, REAGAN: We're tal king about around eighty.
And then some of themare able to bring -- this program
allows for themto have their famlies.

And al so there is another group of retired
j ockeys which are covered, which is all part of the |aw,
and that's all part of the programof the California
j ockeys.

So the last tinme | took account or had an
account given to me, with all of the individuals, we're
probably tal king about -- with famlies and everyt hing,
150-ish, or actually it's about 146. But in that
category. So --

MR, HARRIS: | was trying to figure out -- so it's
actual ly about $4,500 for the individual?
MR. REAGAN. Exactly.

And for the program when you look at it, for
the entire programthey have -- and based on that they're
kind of a risk category -- 4- or 5,000 a head is a
reasonabl e nunber in today's situation.

I know the State of California, that's about

what they spend 4,000 nmaybe, on nme, in the current -- in a
standard year. And | certainly don't have any kind of a
job that --

MR HARRIS: Well, that is covered by the Wrkers
Conpensation Bill.

MR. REAGAN: Certainly.

MR. TOURTELOT: Any other coments?

MR. LANDSBURG. There's a note in here, we don't
know at this tine what the current insurance program
entails, and that a jockey representative was going to
fill us in.

Is there any nore vital information that they
woul d have, or are we left here with just not know ng?

MR. REAGAN: M. Landsburg, |'mglad you brought
t hat up.

Since | wote that comment, M. Daryl Haire
has gotten in touch with me and indicated that even though
there was turnmoil at the Guild, the standard programthat
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had been in place for California was able to be kept
intact. And so the docunments | had in nmy office were

still valid. And even though | say there were concerns,
that programis still intact. And | was glad to hear
that. Thank you.

MR. LANDSBURG. | have no further concerns.

MR. HARRIS: Is this program available to al
j ockeys or only nmenbers and jockey famlies?

MR, REAGAN: All jockeys who ride in California.

There are certain mninmumrequirenments of

50 rides in state plus another at -- but, yes. Any jockey
in California.

MR, HARRI S: Appal oosa and quarterhorses?

MR. REAGAN:. Anybody that rides --

MR. TOURTELOT: Why don't we have the Jockey Guild
report with respect to the insurance program

MR. REAGAN: | saw them here earlier

MR, TOURTELOT: Daryl and Chris, cone forward and
tell us about the insurance program

MR, MC CARRON: First of all, this is Daryl Haire
on ny left, as you well know, and this is
Dr. Wayne Gertnenian, who is now the current
presi dent of the Jockeys Guild and is taking over the
managenment of the Jockeys Guild. And | appreciate the
opportunity to sit here and explain to you why the noney

is needed. It's pretty -- | guess that explanation is not
necessary. It's pretty obvious why the noney is needed.

MR, TOURTELOT: You don't have any objection to the
i ncrease of the 15 percent or nore?

MR, MC CARRON. No. As a matter of fact, |'m going
to ask for nmore. 1In light of the -- especially in |ight
of the terrible tragedy it's obvious that the insurance
costs are only going to go one direction. But | also want
to say thank you very much for the noney that we received
fromthe State of California.

If there is any specific question | could
answer | would be happy to do that, if I can, if | have
the ability. If not, maybe Dr. Garneni an coul d.

MR, LANDSBURG. | think the question of who's
covered on it is now clear. The amobunt of coverage you
have anticipated, and in the past, will obviously continue
to be sufficient for you to take care of the needs of the
j ockeys at this point.

My only question to you, Chris, is |ooking
down the road, with the possibility that the source of
this income may dry up, is the Jockeys Guild prepared for
that kind of energency?

MR, MC CARRON. At the present tinme, no, we are not
prepared for that. |It's something that we're diligently
working on. And it's the major reason why there has been
a managenment change in the Guild.

Back on April 1st the Guild was no | onger
able to provide health insurance for the jockeys

nationally. There is only two states -- three states
now -- that presently have a programlike this in
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California. That's Delaware -- West Virginia just passed
a law, and California has had this |aw since '97, |
believe. And we are currently putting out the bid in the
i nsurance program and having difficulty.

MR. TOURTELOT: M view is that this will not --
this source of funds will not dry up. Historically it's
been there and increasing, unless you have |ess betting
and less fans. That's where it comes from on cash
tickets.

So if it dries up, | suggest that the
i ndustry has a nuch larger problemthan this, nunber one.
And | don't think it's going to happen. | think we can
move forward. It's staightforward. And all these various
people in the audi ence care so much about this industry.
But what |'mconcerned is if you do get an
i ncrease in insurance costs is there enough of a cushion
here right now that you will be covered, or do you have to
cone back to the Board for nobre? O do you have any idea,
say, if the insurance conpanies turn around and gave you a
huge rate increase?

MR, MC CARRON: | think there is great potentia
there that we'd have to conme and ask for nore, | guess.

MR, TOURTELOT: Then | suggest you be prepared to
do that. And the Board would be receptive to covering it
because there is nore noney left in the trust account.

MR. HARRI S: Do the jockeys copay part of it

t hemsel ves or this a --

MR, MC CARRON. Yes. W are also contributing to
the pl an.

MR, WOOD: What we're asking today is,

M. Chairman, is their authorizing we invest in this plan

MR, MC CARRON: Dr. Certmenian would like to offer a
comment .

DR. CERTMENI AN:  First, having now travel ed around
t he Country --

MR, TOURTELOT: | don't think they can hear you.

DR. GERTMENI AN:  We've travel ed around the country
in this short period in nmy tenure and di scovered how
incredibly fortunate the jockeys in California are. So
obviously we're all very appreciative.

However, the increase in their rates that
came about as of April -- and this is enormous. Sonewhere
in the 40 percent range. So the 15 percent range -- the
15 percent increase which you give is certainly not going
to cover it. And we have to now raise the rates that the
j ockeys pay out of their pockets. So it's becom ng a very
serious problem And although we are very appreciative of
the 15 percent increase, it falls short of the absolute
and current need.

And they all understand the problem |'ve
listened to you and watched your reaction. And you al
understand that this is an incrediblly difficult
situation. You're dealing with jockeys that are on
average, nationwide, if you take out the top 45 jockeys,

t hey are maki ng about $14, 000, $15,000 a year. It just
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doesn't nmake any sense. And for themto have to pay and
then conme up with noney for the insurance is really over
the top. So | would ask you to please consider, in
addition to what you have al ready consi dered

And John and | have tal ked about this and

he's been extrenely helpful. But if there was a way to
i medi ately consider an increase of over and above
the 15 percent that you' ve already done, | think it would

be realistic.

MR. TOURTELOT: W can't do that because it's not
on notice for an increase.

DR. CERTMENIAN: We would like to be able to cone
back.

MR, TOURTELOT: | think the Board would be very
receptive to the situation. And, obviously, we care a |ot
about the jockeys.

VWhat you'll need to do is put together a
package showi ng all of the figures so that the Board sees
the nunbers of just what you're tal king about. Just to
say there has been a trenmendous increase is not enough
You have to spell it all out in a package and submt it to
the Board. And |I'msure the Board will be very receptive
to increasing that. But, again, we can't do it based
upon - -

DR. GERTMENI AN: | think what we really wanted to
hear is that you would be receptive to us com ng back to
tal k about this.

TOURTELOT: W are -- they are.
MORETTI :  Yes, we are.
TOURTELOT: Thank you very much
We need a notion to approve the adoption of
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the --

WOOD: W do.
LANDSBURG: So noved
Bl ANCO.  Second.
TOURTELOT: All in favor?
Bl ANCO.  Aye.
GRANZELLA: Aye.
HARRI S:  Aye.
LANDSBURG: Aye.

LI CHT: Aye.

MORETTI :  Aye.
TOURTELOT:  Aye.

Let's nove on.

Publi c hearing on the adoption of the
regul atory anendnent to CH R B. Rule 1969 - wagering
prohibited, to add totalizator enployees to classes of
licensees who are prohibited from placing wagers while on
duty.

EEEEEEEEEE

Jacki e?
M5. WAGNER: Jacki e Wagner, C.H R B. staff.
Presently Board Rule 1969 provides that a
certain nunmber of certain classes, ultimtely |licensees,
be prohibited from wagering while on duty. It
specifically states that these enpl oyees woul d incl ude
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Pari - Mut uel enpl oyees.

Hi storically, Pari-Mituel enployees have been
interpreted to include totalizator enployees. However,
this view was successfully chal |l enged.

As a result, Auto Tote requested that the
i ndustry amend Rule 1969 specifically to include that
totalizator enployee as a class of licensee ineligible to
pl ace a wager while on duty.

The amendnment to this rule is specifically
asked.

MR, TOURTELOT: Let me see if we can cut through
this.

Does Local 280 have any objection to this
amendment ?

MR. LI CCARDO  Ron Liccardo, Local 280

To also bring in the -- put the totalizator
peopl e under the sane scope, absolutely not. Because this
shoul d have been done years ago.

MR. TOURTELOT: Okay. Good.

Wth no questions the Board will entertain a
notion to adopt --

MR. HARRI'S: Just under the current rule, |
understand -- how does it work if the patron was to make a
bet for hinP

MR, TOURTELOT: That's illegal

MR. HARRIS: You can't do that.

M5. WAGNER:  Nope.

MR. TOURTELOT: That's just doing indirectly what

you can't do directly. As long as you don't catch them
very often.
MR, LI CCARDC: W don't have it happen as nmuch now

as it happened years ago, but it still happens. Sonetines
we get stuck with tickets and we end up stuck with |osers
and sonetinmes with winners. So -- | don't think the Board

precl udes us from being stuck with paying the paynent of
the tickets, so | don't think you should preclude us from
cashing the tickets in either

MR. TOURTELOT: No. But we don't want to have that
used to get around the rule.

MR. LICCARDO. No. But it does happen

W' ve had incidents where clerks are
responsi ble for tickets that they punch out that the
customer didn't want and the clerk had to pay for the
ticket. If that ticket happened to be a winner, then if
the customer didn't pay for it and the clerk is stuck with
it, then they ought to be able to receive the noney.

MR. TOURTELOT: How does the security know that a
particul ar Pari-Mituel clerk doesn't buy him or herself a
hundred dollar ticket, and if security comes by and says,
"oh, well sonmebody did this and wal ked away"?

MR. LICCARDO. It's usually handl ed through the
nmut uel departnent that they say the clerk is going to be
stuck with the ticket whether they like it or not. And
it's determ ned before the race is even run, nost of the
time.

MR. TOURTELOT: Okay. Thank you, Ron.
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Any ot her questions?

Chair will entertain a notion to adopt the
amendment .

LANDSBURG: So noved
TOURTELOT: Second?
MORETTI :  Second.

Al in favor?
Bl ANCO:  Aye.
GRANZELLA: Aye.
HARRI S:  Aye.
LANDSBURG: Aye.
LI CHT: Aye.
MORETTI :  Aye.
TOURTELOT:  Aye.

Public hearing on the adoption of the
regul atory anmdendnent to C.H R B. Rule 1979 - Trifecta, to
elimnate the provision that requires the cancellation and
refund of the trifecta pool if less than five wagering
interests finish the race.

MS. WAGNER: Jacki e Wagner, C.H R B. staff.

The trifecta rule currently requires that to
open a trifecta pool you have at |east six wagering
Entrants selected to start. |If fewer than five of these
entrants finish the race, the trifecta pool mnust be
cancel ed and refunded.

At the May 22nd neeting of the Pari-Mitue
Committee there was a di scussion held, and the industry
heard a request to reduce or to delete the requirenent

2535355 533

that five wagering entrants finish the race.

The amendnment to the trifecta rule will do
just that.
MR. TOURTELOT: Any questions?
MR, HARRIS: Well, | ama little concerned. |'m
not supporting trifectas, but -- and | don't think there

is any, you know, history of race fixing on trifectas.

But | think as we get closer to this type of rule you

m ght encourage that. |If you have a six-horse field and
si x-post parade -- and basically we're saying if there's
four horses in the race that finished, or maybe even three
horses in the race that finished, you're still paid off?

MS5. WAGNER: Yes.

MR. HARRIS: And | don't know if there is an
overriding public outcry that this needs to happen or what
is the -- sort of the nemesis of the origin of this rule?

MR, LICHT: Well, the Commttee is saying this,
and it nmay be. W acknow edged what you were talking
about and, actually, | think, many of the historic race
fixes have involved trifectas. And there always is that
possibility that the smaller the field the easier it wll
be, too. But as we tal ked about, et ad nauseam the race
dates, the fact is there are just lots of five-horse
fields. And the Comrittee felt that in order to properly
provide the correct betting, then we should have trifecta
wageri ng.

MR, LANDSBURG. This doesn't change that rule.
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This only changes the nunber of horses who have to finish

a race. |If a horse breaks down, the trifecta pool is
still alive.

MR. LICHT: But with a smaller field it's nore
likely --

MR. LANDSBURG  You just said that horses --

MR, LICHT: | m sspoke

MR. LANDSBURG -- six horses at the start.

MR. HARRIS: You still have to have six horses on

the program

MR, LICHT: Right.

MR. HARRI'S: Six horses on the programto have a
trifecta.

MR. LICHT: Right.

MR. HARRI'S: But you can have three of them scratch
in the post parade and still be a trifecta payoff.

It just seens to ne that we're fixing
sonmething that isn't that broken

MR. TOURTELOT: Well, can the Pari-Mituel Committee
recomend - -

MR. LICHT: Yes.

MR. HARRI'S: Do the horsenmen have any thoughts on
this?

MR. BAEDEKER: Ri ck Baedeker, Hol |l ywood Park.

We had this incident at Hollywood Park during
the sumrer, and there were two problens; one, we should
have been better prepared so there was a bit of a delay in
announci ng the cancellation of the trifecta to the
public. That's easily corrected.

What was the real problemis that owners of
the winning trifecta tickets had a strong opi ni on about
this regulation. And it was difficult to explain to them
because the horse did start the race. As a matter of
fact, he did break down. And it is a little different
than any other situation they're famliar with where, you
know, the stewards nmight declare a race "no contest," or a
horse woul d scratch at the gate, and so forth.

So it was a difficult problemfor our
customers.

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you.

MR. BAEDEKER: It's extrenely rare that sonething
like this happens and | hope it continues to be extremely
rare.

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you.

I don't think I have any other conments,
questi ons or reports.

The Chair will entertain a nmotion to adopt.
LI CHT: So noved.
M5. MORETTI: Second. All in favor?
Bl ANCO:  Aye.
GRANZELLA: Aye.
HARRI S:  No.
LANDSBURG: Aye.
LI CHT: Aye.
MORETTI :  Aye.

=
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MR, TOURTELOT: Aye.
Now we have staff report.
MR, REAGAN:. John Reagan, C. H R B. staff.

Commi ssi oners, we have our standard reports,
t wo- page summary and then the detail for each of the
nmeets.

| do want to point out one item In your
bi nders today all of the statistics and averages on the
first two pages are correct. |In sone of these earlier

versions that got out the Cal Expo State Fair percentage
changes were incorrect. But what you have in your package
today is correct. And | wanted to nake that note not only
for you, but for the audi ence who may have those earlier
packages in their possession

O her than that it |looks |ike an interesting
summer. Sone of the fairs were kind of a push, sone were
down a little bit, others were up. So we're stil
tracki ng that and keeping close tabs on it, and we'l
continue to do the five-year review and give you the
di fferences.

MR, TOURTELOT: Thank you. We appreciate the hard
wor k that you put in, John, in these reports that you
prepare for the Board. W appreciate it very much. It
hel ps in maki ng our deci sions.

MR. REAGAN: Thank you.

MR. TOURTELOT: The next itemis election of
chairman and the vice chairman of the California Horse
Raci ng Board.

Chair will entertain a notion.

MR, HARRIS: | would Iike to nom nate

Al an Landsburg as Chai r man.

2

TOURTELOT: |'Il second it.
MR. LANDSBURG. Thank you.

MR, TOURTELOT: All in favor?

MR. BI ANCO.  Aye.

MS. GRANZELLA: Aye.

MR HARRI'S: Aye.

MR. LANDSBURG. Aye.

MR LI CHT: Aye.

MS. MORETTI: Aye.

MR. TOURTELOT: Aye.

MR. WOOD: That's a unani nous vote.
MR

. TOURTELOT: | want to state for the record and
for M. Landsburg it's not effective until Tuesday norning
at 12:01 a.m Before that, I'mstill the boss.

MR, LANDSBURG. | will have said at m dnight

Monday, you did a hell of a job, Bob. You kept a |ot of
us in straight lines and created a remarkable record for
yourself at the Board. And | trust we'll take further
noti ce of what you have done.
MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you.

I have a couple of remarks to say in a
m nut e.

The next itemis the election of the
vice chairman for the California Horse Racing Board for
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the ensuing year or thereafter

Any noni nations?
HARRIS: | would |ike to nom nate Rodger Licht.
TOURTELOT: 1'l1 second that nom nation

23

Al in favor?
Bl ANCO:  Aye.
GRANZELLA: Aye.
HARRI S:  Aye.
LANDSBURG: Aye.
LI CHT: Aye.
MORETTI :  Aye.
TOURTELOT:  Aye.
[t's unani nous.
Congratul ati ons, gentlenen.
Committee reports. The Race Dates
Conmittee. |1've already reported on that.
Next is a report from Pari-Mituel operator

SRR EEEE

Roger Licht.

MR, LICHT: Well, the comrittee net yesterday and
finalized regulations to go into effect for deposit
wagering in the State. | think the staff and the
committee and the industry in general should be comended
for working so quickly and doing such a great job. |
t hi nk our regul ations, w thout question, are the nost
conprehensive and the nost user friendly and the npst
beneficial to the industry that exist today. |'m hopefu
that they will nmake their way through the adm nistrative
process rather quickly and be up and running on
January 1st.

Again, | think staff did an outstanding job.
And |'mvery happy that the industry cane together as a
whol e, all the aspects; the labor, the tracks, the

horsenmen. Everybody seenmed to work together to put
together a very cogent and interesting set of regul ations.
MR. LANDSBURG Roger -- and for the record, as a
menber of that conmittee -- the conmittee is very grateful
for the hel p and support in making sure that the better
with the wager that the account holder, as we call them

is well protected and insulated from under a keen -- and
insulated fromfraud as best we coul d.
MR. LICHT: | guess what | would like to do now is

ask that the Chair recommend that these regulations be
publ i shed and the adm nistrative process begin
MR, TOURTELOT: So reconmmended.
Al right. The next itemis --
MR. LI CCARDO  Excuse nme, M. Chairman.
Ron Liccardo, Local 280.

About the account wagering, |'ve been
involved in it for three years. | was called part of the
i ndustry for three years. | have spent a lot of tinme --
my organi zation has spent a |lot of nmoney trying to get
this bill passed. And when their regs were wote
everybody in the industry was invited to the nmeetings on
their regs, but | didn't get a phone call. | didn't even

know they were taking place until a week later. | think



24
25
26
27
28
0070
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
0071
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

the tinme we put into it, | think we should have at | east
finished it out.

Maybe | had no input -- maybe | woul dn't have
had any input, but | would have |liked to have been part of
it right down to the end.

Thank you, sir.

MR, LICHT: M. Liccardo, | know you were present
at the conmittee nmeeting yesterday and you were heard and
you certainly had a lot of input with ne and your views
had been expressed with respect to the regul ations.

MR, TOURTELOT: All | can say is that on behal f of
this, M. Liccardo, is that it probably woul d have been
better had Labor been invited. [It's not going to be very
productive to go back and tal k about what shoul d have been

But | just hope that we don't go back to what
| felt that the situation on the Board was when | cane on
in that Labor was treated |ike a second-class citizen
And | don't want to place any blame, but | wish that this
Board and the staff would be nore sensitive to Labor's
concerns when they have these kinds of neetings. \Whether
you think they should be invited or not, they should be
called and asked. | just would hate to see us go
backwards to where we hopefully were a couple days ago.

I want to say a couple things under "Genera
Business." This is ny last neeting as the Conm ssi oner of
the Board. | want to thank Governor W/Ison for having
appointed me for four years, and then reappointing ne and
allowing ne to have another four years.

In eight years |I've never mssed a neeting,
not one neeting, which | ampretty proud of. And | think
it shows how nuch | cared about this job and about the
i ndustry.

I want to thank our staff headed by, | think

t he nunber one executive director in the United States,
Roy Whod. | don't think horse racing in California would
be where it is today as a | eader in our country w thout
Roy Wbod's | eadership

And that then foll ows down to Nieoto, head of
security. You can go right on down the line;
Dr. Jensen. The people that we have are the finest in the
country. And staff, we have -- the hardworking, dedicated
staff that really nakes this Comr ssion, as
menbers, | ook good. They're the ones behind the scenes
that don't get the credit -- Jackie, the hard work that
you do with the legislature. And us noving over
feathers get ruffled.

So | think the staff is the one that deserves
a great round of applause fromall of us.

And I"'msorry to be leaving. Wrking with
Roy Wod, it's been quite a race. But |I'mnot going to be

gone fromracing; I'll still be around.
I think that the people that 1've met wll
say, "Well, what did you get out of it?" | didn't know

very much about horse racing, which was pretty obvious to
some of the nmpans and groans when | was reappoi nted. But
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I think 1've learned a |ot about it in eight years. |
think I've learned a |lot of positive things. But | know
one thing, that I've nmet incredible people throughout the
country and especially in California. Al different
facets of the organization and the industry.

And | hope that many of us will stay friends.

And | hope that they all don't forget nmy name the next day
after we're finished, and that we were friends only
because | was a regulator, because | really didn't | ook at
it that way. And | know that sone of the people have said
that to ne that -- nore than just being a regul ator

My wi fe, Susan, and the children, we've
really enjoyed the eight years of working with you. And
we really care about this industry. W love it. W |ove
the people and the wonderful jockeys, real athletes. And
the major athletes, and those are the horses.

So | want to thank you all. | really have
enj oyed the eight years. Thank you.
MR. HALL: Lee Hall fromS. E.l.U 1877. |'mon

t he executive board of the racetrack.

I'"'mhere, M. Tourtelot, to thank you for
everything that you' ve done for us. And I'mglad that you
were here when we needed you. And we're going to truly
mss you. And | wanted to come here in person to tel
you. And | brought a few other nmenbers, for they can tel
you in honesty they really appreciate everything that you
did, sir.

Thank you.

MR. TOURTELOT: You know, | appreciate that. And
we talked a little bit at breakfast. | told you that |
had actually been a janitor for three years in |aw school
I worked as a janitor at Hastings Law School. Not
fulltime, but we were the only janitors. And we were
enpl oyed by the State.

And so | have cl eaned cl assroons and
washroons, and all of that. And also | was a nmenber of
the Labor and Health Care Union in high school and coll ege
and also a |l ongshoreman. So |'ve always felt close to the
| aborers because | was there.

And | just hope that this Board will continue
to be sensitive to your needs. And sonetinmes we have
| abor di sputes and they can't actually interfere because
of the Federal rules. But they can certainly listen to
you and do whatever they can. Because you're a very
i mportant part of this industry.

Thank you.
MR. HALL: | don't think that your name is going to
di sappear fromthe laborers. | think we'll hear from you

agai n.
MR. BLONI EN: Rod Bl oni en.

This is one of the fewtimes | stand before
not representing anyone but nyself and it doesn't pay
nearly as well, | have to say.

But, Bob, | really wanted to personally thank
you very much for your eight years of stewardship on this
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Boar d.

I recall in 1993 when you were appointed
think the first thing you were asked to do was to select a
new executive director. And there is a little
behi nd-t he-scene's story

Bob was appointed. And the next day he
received a call fromthe CGovernor's office saying we want

you to select X as the new executive director. And to
show you the independent-thinking person Bob is, he chose
Roy Wbod rather than X. And |'ve got to say that this guy
has been nmuch better than brand X in terms of his work.

And, you know, Bob, | think the hours that
Ed Friendly and | stood before you either as a nenber of
the Board -- and at that tine the only attorney on the
Board -- or as a nenber of the Bylaws Conmittee, or as a
menber of Pari-Mituel Committee, making argunents and
really wanting to do things that were unheard of in terns
of previous history of this Board. It's a very, very
difficult decision to nake to enable T.O C. to really cone
i nto exi stence and becone representatives to the
hor senen.

And | recall it was near Christmastinme, |
think, in "'93 -- or maybe it was '94 -- that we cane
before the Board and asked the Board to i ssue a cease and
desist order to keep the h.b.p.a. fromwiting a check for
$300, 000 to a |l obbyist. Now, for a lobbyist that -- to
argue agai nst giving noney to a | obbyist is really out of
character. But you were |eaned upon to give sone |ega
advice to the Board to help direct themthrough that. And
it was all for the good of the industry.

And Ed Friendly called me this norning and
asked me to give you his best w shes and regards and to
t hank you very much for your help with the T.O C
| eaders. And Dr. Allred has asked nme to thank you on
behal f of Los Alamitos for the issues that you worked on

on our behal f.

In terns of the industry in general, the
first year we got $10 nmillion in license fee relief. Your
buddy, Pete WIlson, was in the corner office. And we know
that you waited and were hel pful with that headi ng taking
pl ace.

It was followed by $40 mllion and, of
course, we can't forget our good friend, Senator Ken, who
was there and hel ped guide that all through to make that
become a possibility.

You battled with the industry on saddl e
clause. And | think it's an inprovenent and sonething
that we all reflect on and say we should have done it
years ago

You' ve brought a fresh view to the horse
racing industry. You weren't really a menber of the
fraternity or the sorority, so to speak. You were a
busi nessperson, an attorney, that cane with a | ot of good
advi ce.

At al nost every neeting you attended Susan
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was there. And we're sorry that we probably won't be
seeing her as often as we have in the past. And it's been
good with your kids -- your girls were there at a |ot of
the neetings and it was all very, very nice.

And it's a little sad to see you go. You're
the final nenber of the Scurfield Gang. And we | ook back
again, at a lot of things that we had to do and work
on jointly. Advanced deposit wagering was sort of the

final crom -- or the final gemin your crown. And | want
to thank you. And | guess it's cone -- time has come for
me to say goodbye.

Happy trails to you, until we neet again.
Happy trails to you, keep smiling until then

Bob, the best to you, to Susan, the famly,
and don't be a stranger.

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you

That song that rod sings for each departing
commi ssioner is kind of |ike the Amazi ng Graze of horse
raci ng.

MR, CHI LLI NGSWORTH: | prom se you, |'m not going
to sing.

The second nost difficult task, after
al l ocating Northern California's racing dates is follow ng
Rod Bl oni en.

But, Bob, I've heard that you cleaned up in
your profession. You got an early start at Hastings doing
t hat .

Anyway, | want to reassure you -- reassure
you that we will continue our contact with you, all of us,
in the racing business.

I have a specific fact to point out that
Ceorge Nichol aw, one of your predecessors here, and | are
putting on a special nmenorial service on Wdnesday, the
openi ng day. And George is our cosponsor. And we worked
on this thing for two or three days. And | just want to
reassure you that, and it is a specific fact, but | hope

you continue your contacts and we certainly will of you.
MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you very nuch.
MR. VAN DE KAMP: John Van De Kamp, T.0O. C

|'ve probably known Bob | onger than just
about anyone here because we met back in the 1960's when
you were a bachelor and I was still a bachel or

I would just like to say thank you, Bob, for
your service on the Board. And | can't speak as well as
Rod, but | know very well that you were there and
i nstrunmental in the foundation of our organi zation. And
know t hat you may have been upset with us once in a while,
but it is a live, active organization, and | think you can
take some real responsibility for it.

And ny offer for you today, or ny challenge
to you today, is to become a nenber of T.OC. One way to
stay involved in the horse racing business, in a very
active way, and we need owners. Bob Lewi s has some horses
that I know he m ght be --

MR. TOURTELOT: You know, | wanted to say that ny
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dad -- and nmy brother is here, nmy brother, Richard. W
dad was a very bright guy. And the one thing | renenber
he said was never own anything that eats when you're
sl eepi ng.

MR. VAN DE KAMP: But you never know better than
t hat .

Thank you very mnuch.

MR. BAEDEKER: Ri ck Baedeker, Hollywood Park and

Churchill Downs.

I would just like that to say that having
been in the industry for 52 years, which is forever, I'm
nore excited about our prospects today than | have been in
along time. And it's because of this new product we have
call ed "account wagering." And this Board was certainly
instrumental in getting it passed and signed. And
obviously was critical in passing the regulations that
will make it, | believe, a very popular product. And
would Iike to focus on this: This all happened under your
| eader shi p.
So | hope that as we continue to see you over
the years at the track, we can say, "That was great
wor k. "
Thanks agai n.
MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you very nuch
MR. HALPERN: Ed Hal pern, California Thoroughbred
Tr ai ners.

Bob, | just wanted to say that as | | ook
around the Board, |'m wondering who is going to take on
the role -- and | hesitate to use the term-- of keeping

t he Board honest.

But | noticed over the past couple of years
that all sides of every issue were |ooked at, or at |east
nost sides. And in great part because of your presence

and your willingness to |look at all sides of the issue.
And for that, | would like to thank you on behal f of the
trainers.

And if you should take John up on his offer

to jointhe TOC , | will certainly be nmost glad to help
you find someone to train your horses.
MR, TOURTELOT: | would pick you.
MR. LI CCARDO  Ron Liccardo, Local 280
Over the last several years -- | won't say
all eight years -- we've had a great relationship. The

first year was a little rocky with us, but you gave us al
consi deration possible. And all we wanted to do was get a
fair shake, and that's all we asked for. And we got
not hing but a fair shake from you

You gave us all an opportunity to speak our
m nds and |let us know where we're at in the industry. You
gave us all considerations -- not overwhel ming in our way,
but just to listen to what was going on. That's what we
needed. W needed sonebody |i ke Bob has done just to hear
what we have to say so we can, at |east, spread our voice
within this industry that |1've been part of for 32 years,
just working here. And | was a fan for ten years hefore
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that. | was old enough to cone out here -- ny dad was
taking me out to the racetrack

But thank you very nuch for all your help
And hopefully you will stay in the industry.

MR WOOD: | would like to say a few words on
behal f of the staff.

M. Blonien explained earlier that you were
there that day back in Cctober of '93 when we had the
interview. And fromthat tine and this day forward we've
wor ked together for eight years over a | ot of projects.

And Bob came into the Board, as | did, in California. And
with each and every day that he served on the Board, he's
al ways done it with integrity and honesty. People may not
have al ways agreed with what Bob had to say or what he
felt, but he always |istened to everybody's side of the
story.

He was a very good | eader for the staff of
this Board. He was a very good nenber of The California
Hor se Racing Board for the people of California.

It's nore than sad to nme today to say goodbye
to Bob as a menber of the Board. But | know he will
remain with me as a friend forever because we did
establish that kind of a relationship.

Hs wife, Susan, was a very big part of
everything that happened in the Horse Racing Board. He's
been a great famly man. W're going to mss himan aw ul
lot. But we know we're all a lot better off because Bob
wal ked these steps with us along the way. Especially in
hi s cooperation with our investigative staff when he
participated on a daily basis, or a weekly basis, whether
it's qualifying or giving support, and sometinmes it's
never easy to give support for that.

He's been supportive of this staff,
especially me, for eight years. | can't tell you what
he's neant tonme inny life and nmy famly.

Thank you very much.

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you.
MR WOOD: So that you won't have to worry about

sonmeone forgetting your nane, |'m going ask two things;
one, in Cctober we would like to invite you back to the
California Board of Horse Racing Board neeting for some
formal presentations. But in the interim just so you
won't have any problemw th people remenberi ng who you are
and what you have done for the racetrack, | would like to
present you with your official California Horse Racing
Board gol d card credenti al

MR. TOURTELOT: Thank you very nuch.

MR. LANDSBURG. Can he now charge anything he
want s?

MR. TOURTELOT: Nunber 99. Have there been
99 commi ssi oners?

MR WOOD: It's been a long tradition

MR. TOURTELOT: Well, any old business, issues that
need to be raised for discussion purposes only, which have
al ready been brought before the Board?
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Al right. Wth that then we're going to go

into executive session. W will adjourn the neeting for
pur poses of executive session but we will cone back, but
we will not conduct any further business.
Does anybody have anything to say?
MR. WOOD: | have one thing to say.

I would Iike to |l et everyone in attendance to
know that M. Dwayer from Fairplex has invited everyone in
attendance today to attend a luncheon on the third floor
at 12:00 noon. So if you would like to, join them

(Hearing adjourned at 12:03 p.m)
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